Code of Conduct

Chrysos Corporation Limited ACN 613 131 141 (Company)

Speed of light summary

This Code sets out the values, commitments, ethical standards and policies of the Company and outlines the standards of conduct expected of its business and people, taking into account the Company's legal and other obligations to its stakeholders.

Who does this Code apply to?

This Code applies to all Directors and senior management, as well as all Officers, employees, contractors, consultants, other persons that act on behalf of the Company, and associates of the Company in their dealings with customers, suppliers, regulators, shareholders and other stakeholders.

What are the guiding principles of the Code?

The guiding principles of the Code are the Company's key values of:

- (a) integrity;
- (b) respect; and
- (c) empathy;

How should this Code be used?

Parties covered under the Code should seek to familiarise themselves with the Company's standards and practices outlined in Part 4 and then ultimately seek to reflect these standards and practices in their relevant roles and dealings with the Company.

Breaches of the Code

If a breach of this Code is found to have occurred, depending on the nature of the breach, the party responsible may face legal or disciplinary action including termination of their employment or engagement.

Further information

Should you require further information regarding this Code, please contact the Company's Secretary at cosec@sun.law.

Table of contents

1	Purpose and application1		
	1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5	Purpose of this Code	1
2	Definitions		
3	Our values and commitments		
	3.1	Core values and commitments	3
4	Our ethical standards and policies		
	4.1	Expectation	
	4.2	Conflicts of interest	∠
	4.3	Opportunities, benefits and ownership of work	
	4.4	Anti-bribery and gifts	5
	4.5 4.6	Dealings with politicians and government officials	
	4.6 4.7	Confidentiality Privacy	
	4.8	Company reputation	
	4.9	Social media	
	4.10	Fair dealing	
	4.11	Discrimination, bullying, harassment and vilification	8
	4.12	Health and safety	
	4.13	Protection of and use of the Company's assets and property	
	4.14 4.15	Trade secrets and intellectual property Compliance with laws and regulations	
	4.15	Responsibility to the environment	
	4.17	Responsibility to shareholders and the financial community	
	4.18	Insider trading	
	4.19	Whistleblower protection	10
5	Brea	ch of this Code	10
6	Administration		
	6.1	Where can I obtain further information?	
	6.2	Review and publication of this Code	11

1 Purpose and application

1.1 Purpose of this Code

The Company is committed to, and strives to, act honestly and with integrity in all its dealings. This Code sets out the values, commitments, ethical standards and policies of the Company and outlines the standards of conduct expected of our business and people, taking into account the Company's obligations, legal and otherwise, to its stakeholders.

The objectives of this Code are to:

- (a) provide a benchmark for professional behaviour;
- (b) support the Company's business reputation and corporate image within the community; and
- (c) identify the actions that should be taken where a breach occurs.

The Board has endorsed this Code

1.2 Application of this Code

This Code applies to all Directors and senior management, as well as all Officers, employees, contractors, consultants, other persons that act on behalf of the Company, and associates of the Company in their dealings with customers, suppliers, regulators, shareholders and other stakeholders.

You are expected at all times to act consistently with the values, commitments and ethical standards as set out in this Code. This Code operates in conjunction with the Company's policies and procedures relating to you.

It is essential that each of you are familiar with this Code, which is available on the Company's website. Naturally, this Code cannot cover every circumstance that you may face nor can it address every law, regulation or company policy that may apply to you. The overriding principle is that all business affairs of the Company must be conducted legally, ethically andsafely, with strict observance of the highest standards of propriety and business ethics.

This Code is not an attempt to instruct individuals on how to conduct themselves outside their working relationships, nor to change their personal beliefs. While this Code is designed to demonstrate the Company's commitment to corporate responsibility, it does not create any rights in any employee, customer or other person or entity.

You are encouraged to obtain copies of the policies, standards and procedures relevant to your work. If you have any questions about your obligations or about the Company's expectations, please speak with your manager or the Secretary.

1.3 How this Code interacts with other company policies

This Code should be read in conjunction with all relevant Company policies, which include (but are not limited to) our policies that deal with continuous disclosure and security trading in the Company's shares.

Copies of these policies are available on the Company's website.

1.4 ASX Corporate Governance Principles

Unless otherwise stated in the annual Corporate Governance Statement, the Company has adopted the recommendations provided in the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and, in particular, the recommendations regarding codes of conduct.

1.5 Company Directors

Directors will acquaint themselves with obligations imposed on them and the Company by the Corporations Act. They will also familiarise themselves with other documents prepared by the Company to meet corporate governance requirements.

The more important legal obligations are summarised below:

- (a) Directors will act honestly, and exercise reasonable care and diligence at all times in the performance of their functions;
- (b) Directors or former Directors will not make improper use of information acquired by virtue of their position;
- (c) Directors will not make improper use of their position to gain a direct or indirect advantage for themselves or any other person; and
- (d) Directors have a fiduciary duty to the Company and a duty to act with loyalty and in good faith.

2 Definitions

General terms and abbreviations used in this Code have the meanings set out below:

Anti-bribery & Corruption Policy means the Company's anti-bribery and corruption policy.

ASX means ASX Limited ACN 008 624 691 or the securities market operated by ASX Limited, as the case may be.

ASX Corporate Governance Principles means *Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations (4th Edition, 2019)* as amended from time to time.

Board means the board of Directors of the Company.

CEO means the chief executive officer of the Company.

Chair means the chair of the Board.

Code means this "Code of Conduct".

Company means Chrysos Corporation Limited ACN 613 131 141.

Corporations Act means the *Corporations Act 2001* (Cth).

Corporate Governance Statement means the ASX Listing Rule 4.10.3, requirement for the Company to provide a statement in their annual report disclosing the extent to which they have followed the ASX Corporate Governance Principles.

Director means a director of the Company.

Directors' Report means the Directors' report which forms part of the Company's annual financial statements.

Disclosure and Communication Policy means the Company's disclosure and communication policy.

Notes to the Financial Statements means the notes to the financial statements which form part of the Company's annual report.

Officer means a senior executive of the Company.

Secretary means the company secretary of the Company.

Securities Trading Policy means the Company's securities trading policy.

Social Media includes, but is not limited to:

- (a) blogs, discussion forums or websites used for posting opinions that are publically accessible, whether operated by a media organisation or established by another organisation or an individual, such as Twitter and Yahoo! Groups;
- (b) video or photo sharing websites, such as YouTube, Flickr and TikTok;
- (c) wikis which individuals and organisations can contribute to or edit information, such as Wikipedia;
- (d) social networking websites such as Facebook, Instagram and LinkedIn whether publically accessible or not;
- (e) message sharing networks such as WhatsApp; and
- (f) email accounts.

Whistleblower Policy means the Company's whistleblower policy.

3 Our values and commitments

3.1 Core values and commitments

The Company's foundational pillars are:

- (a) Integrity being honest and consistently adhering to strong moral and ethical principles and values.
- (b) Respect for both people and the environment. In relation to people, treating everyone with due regard for their feelings, wishes or rights
- (c) Empathy the ability to sense what the client, colleague or other stakeholder needs from you

Through these pillars the Company is able to commit to:

- a) a zero harm philosophy with regards to health and safety;
- b) a focus on decreasing the environmental footprint of the industries in which the Company operates; and
- being a responsible member of the communities in which the Company operates and interacts with.

4 Our ethical standards and policies

4.1 Expectation

The Company expects that you will:

- (a) act in accordance with the stated values and in the best interests of the Company;
- (b) act honestly and with high standards of personal integrity;
- (c) comply with all laws and regulations that apply to the Company and its operations;
- (d) act ethically and responsibly;

- (e) treat fellow staff members with empathy and respect and not engage in bullying, harassment or discrimination:
- (f) deal with all customers and suppliers fairly using the key principles of respect and empathy;
- (g) disclose and deal appropriately with any conflicts between personal interest and duties within the Company;
- (h) not take advantage of the property or information of the Company or its customers for personal gain or to cause detriment to the entity or its customers;
- (i) not take advantage of their positions or the opportunities arising therefrom for personal gain; and
- (j) report breaches of this Code to the appropriate persons or body within the Company.

All Directors, senior management, as well as all Officers, employees and key contractors will receive training on their obligations under this Code.

4.2 Conflicts of interest

A conflict of interest occurs if your loyalties are divided, for example if you or your family or friends have a personal or commercial interest which may interfere, or be perceived to interfere, with the performance of your duties and responsibilities to the Company, making it difficult to perform your role objectively and effectively.

Conflicts of interest include:

- (a) being involved in or having a significant ownership or personal financial interest in other enterprises where a conflict may arise with your obligations to the Company;
- (b) participating in activities or discussions where there may be a conflict with your duties and responsibilities to the Company;
- (c) soliciting or receiving benefits such as cash, gifts or entertainment in connection with, or as a reward for, any service or business of the Company, where the benefits, because of the frequency of the offers, the cost and circumstances and timing in which they are offered, creates, or could be interpreted as creating, an obligation that affects your objectivity in making a business decision;
- (d) taking advantage of property, information or other opportunities arising from your position in the Company;
- (e) conflicts of interest arising from a family, business or personal relationship; or
- (f) conflicts of interest arising from activities outside employment (such as involvement in community activities and professional organisations).

The existence of a conflict of interest is not uncommon. What matters is how we manage the conflict.

To safeguard the Company's integrity, it is paramount that you do not allow personal interests or the interests of family or friends to conflict with the interests of the Company. You must avoid participating in decisions and activities which may conflict, or be perceived to conflict, with your duties and responsibilities to the Company.

Generally, you are precluded from approving or administering business arrangements such as contracts between the Company and a member of your immediate family or with a company, firm, or individual employing a member of your immediate family in activities under your administration. If you are a Director and the Board decides that you may properly supply goods or services on commercially acceptable terms to the Company, details will be provided in the annual Directors' Report and Notes to the Financial Statements.

You must not enter into any arrangement or participate in any activity that would conflict with the Company's best interests or would be likely to negatively affect the Company's reputation. You must avoid acquiring any business interests or participating in any business activity outside the Company which would tend to create an excessive demand upon your time and attention or create any distraction during working hours.

You must not be involved in any other company or business or organisation as director, agent, employee or consultant, whether paid or unpaid, if there is a possibility that your personal interests could conflict, or be perceived to conflict, with those of the Company unless you obtain approval first from your manager or the Secretary or the Board (if you are a Director).

If you receive approval to act on the Board of an external company or organisation, you will advise the Secretary promptly of any changes to relevant interests such as directorships, partnerships and holdings in securities. The Secretary will inform all Board members and the regulatory authorities if required. Directors will normally be advised at the next meeting, but more urgently if appropriate to the circumstances. Relevant interests are confirmed annually in writing to the Secretary prior to inclusion in the Directors' Report.

If you are involved in a conflict or possible conflict, or become aware of a conflict, you must tell your manager or the Secretary or the Board (if you are a Director) as soon as possible. The Board will procure the maintenance of a register recording the conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest which may arise.

4.3 Opportunities, benefits and ownership of work

You must not use Company property (including intellectual property), information, or your position or opportunities which arise from these, to improperly gain benefit for yourself or for another party.

You have an obligation to avoid all financial, business and other arrangements which may be opposed to the interests of the Company, or which may place you in a competitive position with the Company.

The product of any work performed while you are with the Company, or on behalf of the Company, or using Company property (including all intellectual property rights created in connection with that work) belongs to the Company.

4.4 Anti-bribery and gifts

A number of countries, including Australia, have strict laws against bribery and corruption. The anti-bribery laws of some countries, including Australia, the United States and United Kingdom can apply to things done in other countries (i.e. they have wide-reaching extra-territorial effect). The Company must comply with and uphold all laws against bribery, corruption and related conduct applying to the Company in all the jurisdictions where the Company operates.

The Company has a strict policy not to offer secret commissions or bribes to further its business interests. Depending on the circumstances, facilitation payments may breach anti-bribery laws. In this regard the Company has adopted its Anti-bribery & Corruption Policy.

Naturally, you must not accept any money or opportunity or other benefit which could be interpreted as an inducement, secret commission or bribe. Care must be exercised in accepting hospitality, entertainment, or gifts over and above that required for the normal conduct of business which may compromise your impartiality.

Decisions in the course of your work must be objective and based solely upon the best interests of the Company. They should never be influenced by any consideration of personal gain or gain to any personal associate (e.g. friend or relative).

The Company is committed to adopting effective systems to counter bribery and related improper conduct and to monitoring and enforcing these systems. From time to time, the Company may issue further guidance regarding what is acceptable in the normal course, what you can do with senior manager or Board approval and what is prohibited.

You may also seek further information or clarification from your manager, the Secretary, legal counsel, the Board (if you are a Director) or other relevant advisor.

4.5 Dealings with politicians and government officials

All dealings with politicians and government officials which relate to the Company and its business activities must be conducted at arm's length and with the utmost professionalism, to avoid any perception of attempts to gain advantage or to improperly influence the outcome of an official decision.

You must not make any donation or other financial contribution to any political party or candidate for an election, or sponsor any organisations (other than in a purely personal capacity) without seeking and obtaining prior approval from the Secretary.

4.6 Confidentiality

In the course of the Company's business, you will have access to business or personal information about the affairs of the Company, its clients, customers, employees, suppliers and business partners. It may include business strategies, marketing and sales plans, competitive analysis, financial plans and forecasts, customer or employee information, supplier information and pricing. Each of the parties expects the confidential nature of the information they have given in good faith to be respected.

You must keep confidential information acquired while you are with the Company, or acting on behalf of the Company, confidential, even after you leave or cease your engagement with the Company, unless the information is already legitimately public knowledge.

In conversations with customers or other staff members and when on the telephone, care must be taken to prevent outsiders from overhearing confidential or personal information. Information should not be divulged over the telephone unless the identity of the caller and their right to receive the information are established. Particular care should be taken in answering enquiries, and data given must be limited to that permitted by standard Company practice. Appropriate legal advice should be obtained where doubt exists.

You must not access or request, or make improper use of, or transfer or disclose confidential information to anyone else except as required by your position, or as authorised or legally required. If confidential information inadvertently comes into your possession it should be returned immediately.

If you are required by an authority to provide confidential information which has not been otherwise authorised, you must notify the Secretary.

4.7 Privacy

You must respect and safeguard the privacy of personal information held by the Company regarding its clients, customers, suppliers, employees and others. This extends to any information or opinion, whether true or not, and whether recorded in a human readable form or not, about an individual whose identity is apparent, or can reasonably be ascertained, from that information or opinion. If you have access to this information, you must ensure that it is collected, kept, disclosed, handled and used in a manner that complies with the *Privacy Act* 1998 (Cth), any other privacy and data protection laws that may apply and the Company policy on privacy.

If you have any questions in relation to privacy, you should consult your manager.

4.8 Company reputation

You must not act in any way that could cause harm to the Company's reputation or market position during or after your employment. You have a duty to act in a manner that merits the continued trust and confidence of the public.

You must not make official statements relating to the Company unless you have obtained prior written approval from the CEO through the Secretary. The Company has adopted a Disclosure and Communication Policy as a means of ensuring compliance with its disclosure and

communication obligations under the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules. The aim of the Disclosure and Communication Policy is to keep the market fully informed of information that may have a material effect on the price or value of the Company's securities, and to correct any material mistake or misinformation in the market.

Please ensure that you are aware of the requirements of the Disclosure and Communication Policy and, if it applies to you, act in accordance with the policy.

4.9 Social media

Management may authorise you to represent the Company on Social Media platforms. If you are granted this authorisation or if you discuss Company related issues in your personal use of Social Media, you must:

- (a) identify your name and your position (when you are acting within your authorised role);
- (b) ensure that any content you publish is factually accurate and complies with relevant Company policies, particularly those relating to confidentiality and the maintenance of professionalism;
- (c) do not publish any confidential or sensitive information that is not already in the public domain without written authorisation from the Company; and
- (d) be respectful of all individuals and communities with which you interact online.

You should ensure that you understand how your privacy settings on some Social Media sites may result in the disclosure of data about other individuals.

Media statements and official announcements may only be made by persons authorised to do so. If the media contacts you about a Company related posting or requests information, and dealing with the media is not part of your job, you should consult your manager.

If you refer to the Company, its staff, products or services, its competitors, and/or other business related issues when you are using a Social Media platform in a personal capacity, you must:

- (a) ensure that readers of your posts cannot misconstrue your personal comments as representing an official Company position. You must not imply that you are authorised to speak on the Company's behalf. The Company recommends that you use a disclaimer to ensure that your stated views and opinions are understood to be your own and not those of the Company;
- (b) not knowingly use the identity of another Company staff member or a staff member of a Company business partner or competitor (including name or variation of a name); and
- (c) consider whether it is appropriate to accept customers, suppliers or competitors as "friends" on Facebook or other Social Media sites. If in doubt, consult your manager.

4.10 Fair dealing

You must treat each other and all suppliers, competitors, clients, customers and other stakeholders fairly and with respect and empathy. When dealing with others, you must:

- (a) perform your duties in a professional manner;
- (b) act with the utmost integrity and objectivity; and
- (c) strive at all times to enhance the Company's reputation and performance.

The Company is committed to ensuring a diverse work environment in which everyone is treated fairly and with respect and where everyone feels responsible for the reputation and performance of the Company.

The Company is committed to equal employment opportunity, and compliance with the letter and spirit of a full range of fair employment practices and anti-discrimination laws. Applicants for employment are evaluated by the Company on merit in accordance with their skills, qualifications and abilities, and having regard to the Company's operational needs.

The Company is committed to ensuring the highest quality of service is provided to its customers and clients at all times. The Company makes decisions regarding suppliers and contractors on merit and a commercial basis.

The Company collects information about its competitors and others in a lawful manner.

4.11 Discrimination, bullying, harassment and vilification

Discrimination, bullying, harassment or vilification in the workplace will not be tolerated by the Company. Any such conduct will be dealt with in accordance with Company policy. For further information, including who to contact, see the Company's website.

4.12 Health and safety

The Company is committed to a zero harm philosophy ensuring the health and safety of its employees, consultants, contractors and visitors to its workplace and any other persons who the Company works with.

Officers have additional due diligence health and safety obligations which they must comply with.

At minimum, you must act in accordance with work health and safety legislation, regulations and policies. The Company's commitment to zero harm shapes a culture that is a safety first, healthy workplace. Specifically, you are responsible for safety in your work area by:

- (a) following the safety and security directives of management;
- (b) advising management of areas where there is a potential problem in safety and immediately reporting any breaches of safety legislation, regulations and policies; and
- (c) minimising risks in the workplace.

The use of alcohol and drugs may impair performance at work, have an adverse impact on productivity, and can pose a risk to health and safety. To assist with ensuring the safety of our workplace, the consumption of alcohol, and the use of any prescription drugs which may impair a person's ability to perform their work, or which pose a risk to their or others' health and safety, must be strictly in accordance with Company policy.

The Company will not tolerate the use of illegal drugs and improperly used prescription medicine on Company premises or when performing work for the Company, travelling on behalf of the Company, attending work related functions or activities or conducting business on the Company's behalf. The possession, use, sale or offering or distribution of illegal drugs or other controlled substances on Company premises or while performing work for the Company, conducting Company business, travelling on behalf of the Company or at work related functions or activities is forbidden.

4.13 Protection of and use of the Company's assets and property

You must protect the Company's assets and property (including intellectual property) and ensure that the Company's assets and property are used only for the benefit of the Company's business. You must report any suspected or actual theft or fraud to your manager or the Secretary or any other contact nominated by the Company.

You must not use the Company's assets or property for personal purposes except in accordance with any Company policy or approved arrangement.

You must return Company assets and property immediately upon request by the Company.

All expenses must be documented and reported in a timely manner.

4.14 Trade secrets and intellectual property

All inventions, discoveries, computer software processes algorithms and improvements made by an employee in connection with their employment with the Company, remain the property of the Company.

This means the Company will hold all proprietary rights to intellectual property and trade secrets. This includes all ownership rights, copyright, exclusive rights to develop, make, use, sell, licence or benefit from any inventions, discoveries, processes and improvements made in connection with an individual's employment with the Company.

4.15 Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is committed to complying with all relevant laws and regulations of the countries in which the Company operates.

You must comply with all laws and regulations relating to the Company, including document retention requirements. You must also comply with the technical and ethical requirements of any relevant regulatory or professional body. You should also encourage other employees to do the same. You must not breach, or omit to do something in breach of, any law or regulation or requirement. All actual or potential breaches must be reported immediately to the Secretary or your manager.

Where local laws, regulations, or customs differ from this Code, you must apply this Code or local requirements, whichever sets the higher standard of behaviour.

Ignorance of the law or having a good intention does not excuse your obligation to comply. You must participate in relevant compliance training programs offered by the Company.

We encourage you to:

- (a) actively understand the laws which affect or relate to the Company's operations;
- (b) attend seminars presented by the Company or other external service providers to maintain your knowledge of the laws and regulations, as well as to increase your awareness of relevant legal and industry developments; and
- (c) interpret the law in a way which reinforces the Company's reputation for integrity.

If you are uncertain about the interpretation of any applicable law or regulation or requirement, contact your manager or the Secretary.

4.16 Responsibility to the environment

The Company is committed to doing business in an environmentally responsible manner and actively identifying environmental risks and improvements that may arise out of its operations.

4.17 Responsibility to shareholders and the financial community

The Company is committed to providing value to its shareholders and recognising the legitimate interests of other stakeholders. The Company has policies regarding the timely provision of information to its shareholders and other stakeholders including posting information to its website. It has processes to ensure that the accounts and financial information it provides represent a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Company.

You must fully cooperate with, and not make any false or misleading statement to, or conceal any relevant information from, the Company's auditors.

You must have an understanding of the Company's business and the environment in which it operates, and stay informed of all relevant activities affecting the Company and the community in which it operates.

Directors and Officers are obliged to exercise sound judgement in their decision-making processes and will not attempt to influence their colleagues improperly in relation to issues or matters where independent judgement is expected of the other person.

Directors and Officers who may communicate publicly (through lectures or papers) on material related to the Company's affairs will in general convey views agreed by the Board. If further material is made public, it should be clearly identified as the view of the individual. Any views attributed publicly to the Board or the Company should be cleared in advance (preferably by the full Board), but at least by the Chair.

4.18 Insider trading

Insider trading laws prohibit a person in possession of material non-public information relating to a company from dealing in that company's securities. Insider trading is a serious offence under the Corporations Act.

The Company is committed to upholding fair and ethical securities trading practices, complying with all laws and avoiding any conflicts of interest.

The Company's Securities Trading Policy is available on the Company's website. It provides guidance so that you do not deliberately or inadvertently breach the insider trading laws or the Company's policy.

4.19 Whistleblower protection

You are encouraged to report any actual or suspected unethical behaviour or breach of the Company's codes and policies to your manager or the Secretary or any other contact nominated by the Company. Matters raised will be investigated.

The Company is committed to ensuring that you can raise concerns in good faith without being disadvantaged in any way, to the extent that the law permits, and the Company has adopted a Whistleblower Policy in this regard.

5 Breach of this Code

The highest standards of corporate conduct are critical to the Company's success and image. The values and policies in this Code are not exhaustive. This Code is designed to focus your attention to particular values identified by the Company as central to its integrity.

Compliance with this Code will be monitored and any known or suspected breaches of this Code will be investigated.

If a breach is found to have occurred, depending on the nature of the breach, you may face legal or disciplinary action including termination of employment. The Company will act in accordance with any applicable provisions or requirements in an employment or contractor contract.

The Company reserves the right to inform the appropriate authorities where it is considered that there has been criminal activity or an apparent breach of the law.

6 Administration

6.1 Where can I obtain further information?

The Company has a dedicated person responsible for the administration of this Code. At the date of adoption of this Code, this is the Secretary.

If you require further information or assistance, or are uncertain about the application of this Code or the law, please contact the Secretary.

6.2 Review and publication of this Code

The Board will review this Code annually. This Code may be amended by resolution of the Board.

If the Board identifies any emerging conduct issues or is of the view that employees of the Company are unwilling or unable to report breaches of this Code, the Board may initiate actions as it considers necessary, including providing training sessions in relation to this Code.

A copy of this Code will be available on the Company's website. It will be distributed to all Directors, employees and other persons as relevant. Key features will be published in:

- (a) either the annual report or on the Company's website; and
- (b) in the Appendix 4G to be lodged with the ASX at the same time as lodgement of the annual report.

Adopted by the Board on 16 March 2022